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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATUTORY REPORT OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report including the financial statements of WRC Holdings Lid and its subsidiaries {the Group) for the year
ended 30 June 2009,

Principal Activitics
WRC Holdings Lid (the Company} is the investment holding company of Greater Wellingion Regional Council (the Council). The Group consists of WRC Holdings

Ltd. its whoily owned subsidiary companies, Port Investments Ltd, Pringle House Lid, Greater Weliington Rail Ltd. Greater Wellington Transpert Lid. Greater
Wellington Infrastructure Ltd and is a 76.9% owner of CentrePort Lid,

The Group's primary objectives shall be to:
Support the Greater Wellington's strategic vision, operate as a successful, sustainable and responsible business.

Own and operate Greater Wellington's headquarters at 142-146 Wakefield Street, Wellington (known as the Regional Council Centre) on a ¢ost
effective basis.

Own Greater Wellington's interest in CentrePort Lid , 10 maximise the commercial vaine of CentrePort to the shareholders and 10 protect the
shareholders' investment, inciuding land and property, while maintaining the CentrePort's strategic value (o the economy of the region.

CentrePort owns and operates the port of Wellington and related facilities at Seaview and Miramar. Jt also owns and operates a number of commerciat
properties. Cwvent tenanis include Statistics New Zealand, Telstra Clear and NZ Rugby Union. CentrePort has just completed a major building which
houses the Bank of New Zealand. In 2008 construction cormmenced on a building for NZ Customs,

Own Greater Wellinglon’s cuwrrent and future investiments in rail rolling stock.

e Greater Wellinglon Rait Ltd currently owns 18 carriages used on the Wairarapa line, at a cost of $26 millien.

» During 2007/08 a contract was entered into with Rotem Mitsui for the supply of 90 Matangi electric multiple units (EMUSs} with an option
lo purchase up to 6 additional EMUs. The units wiil be delivered in stages commencing 2010.

Effectively manage any other investments held by the Group in order to maximise the commerciai value 1o the shareholders and 1o protect the shareholder's investment.

The financial objectives of the Group shall be to:

Where possible, provide a conunercial return to shareholders.

Adopt policies that prudently manage risk and protect the investinent of shareholders.

The cnvironmentai objectives of the Group shall be to:

Operale in an environmentally responsible and sustainable manner.

Mirimise the impact of any of ihe Group’s activities on the enviroumnent.

Raise awareness of environmental issues within the Group,

Ensure CentrePort and Pringle House become more energy efficient and make greater use of renewabie energy.
The social ohjectives of the Group shall be to:

Be a leading organisation and a superior employer.

Provide z safe and healthy workplace.

Partiripate in deveinpment culmral and community activities within the regions i which the Group nperates
Help sustain the economy of the region.

The WRC Holdings Group inet ail ifs objectives as set out in the 2008/09 SOI and Greater Wellington's 2006-2016 Long-Term Council Comununity Plan (LFCCP).

The nature and scope of activities underiaken by the zroup are consistent with those set in the 2008/09 Statement of Intent and Greater Wellington's LTCCP.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATUTORY REPORT OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Financial Results Compared with Statement of Intent (SOI) Targets:

Actual Target Actual

2009 2009 2008

soae 3000 $000

Net surplus before tax 10.468 8.162 7.235
Net surplus after tax {3.885} 4.068 3.205
Retum on total assets 4.48% 4.35% 4.80%
Return on shareholder's equity: excluding any increase/decrease in the value of investment properly 6.07% 1.66% 3.40%
Return on shareholder's equity! including any increase/decrease in the value of investment property (3.03%) 1.66% 1.30%
Dividends 1.659 245 64

Net surplus before tax

"The Goup posted a net surplus before tax, before any increases/decrease in the value of invesiment property and land. of $10.5 million (vs. budget $8.1miillien) for the
year.

Net surplus after tax (before deduction of minority interest)
The net surplus afier tax measure includes a $11.0 million decrease in the net current value of the Group's investment propertics and land (2008: $830.600 decrease).

Return on total assets
This target is calcutaled as eamings before interest and tax (EBIT) and expressed as a percentage of average total asseis.

Return on sharcholder equity

This farget is caiculated as net surplus afier tax (after deduction of minority interest) as a percentage of average sharehokler equity (excluding minority interest). The
measure is shown both before and after any increase in the value of investment properties. Average parent sharcholder equity has also increased due ta the revaluation
of assets.

Dividends paid {or payable to the parent sharcholders)
Lower interess raies have increased the net surplus resulting in a higher dividend from the Group of $1.659 million (2008: $245.000).

Directors
Directors holding office during the year were:

Parent and 100% owned subsidiaries
F H Wilde {Chair)

A Blackbum

P Blades

I M Buchanan

J B Burke

P E Glensor

Remuneration of Directers of the Parent Company
Details of Directors' remuneration are as follows:

3
F H Wilde (Chair) Nil
A Biackbum 3,750
1 M Buchanan il
P E Glensor Nil
P Blades 3.750
J B Burke Nit
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATUTORY REPORT OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Eutries in the Interests Register
Disclosure of interests by Directors for the year ended 30 June 2009:

F H Wiide (Chair)
Counciilor & Chair of Greater Wellington Regional Council

A Blackburm
None

P Blades
None

1 M Buchanan
Pasi Chair and current Counciller of Greater Wellington Regional Council

1B Burke
Councilior of Greater Wellington Regionai Council

P E Glensor
Councilior of Greater Wellington Regional Council

Directors® Interest Register

Directors have had no interest in any transaction or proposed ransaction with the Group.

Directors’ lnsurance

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers” Liability insurance cover 1o indemnify the Dircetors against loss as a resulf of actions undertaken by them as
directors and employees respectively. provided they operate within the law. This disciosure is made in terms of section 162 of the Companies Act 1953.

Directors’ Use of Company Infermafion

The board received no notices during the year from Direclors requesting use of company information veceived in their capacity as Directors which would not have
otherwise been available to them.

Remuncration of Employees
The Company kas no employees. The Group has 20 employees who are paid over $100.,000.

Auditor
The Auditos-General is the appointed auditor in accordance with section 15 of the Public Audil Ac: 200} and section 70 of the Local Government Act 2002, The
Auditor-General lias appointed Andy Bums of Audit New Zealand to underiake the audit.

For. and on behalf of. the Board of Directors

i

/
A ;’I‘. w\
(/’/ L \_S’:]’Jtembcr 24,2009

Direct

September 24, 2009

Director

N LA,
4

e
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The Group's non-financial performance criteria contained in the statement of intent for the 2008/09 year. and resulls are sumamarised:
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Planned Target

CentrePort to develop a formal environmentat managerment system censistent with the standards specified in AS/NZS 14000; 2004

Actual Performance

Achieved. Conducied self-assessment of systems against standard. This resulied in the Environmental Management Plan being updated. CentrePort is working on
{identified enviromnental objectives/targets aimed a1l ongoing performance improvement.

Planned Target

CenirePort 10 undersake the monitoring of environmenial discharges in accordance with implemented management pians in the areas of:

a. Port Noise

b. Stonmwater discharges to the Coastal Marine Area

c. Fumigants associated with the pest treatment of cargoes

Actual Performance

Achieved. a. Initial monitoring under Port Noise management Plan effected showing compliance for Central Port Area and inconclusive outcotnes for Seaview and
Miramar port areas warranting further monitoring.

b, Monitoring of private stormwater discharges showed compliance although high bacterial counts registered due to bird rousting in port.

c. All monitoring data of pest treatment of cargoes subinitied to GWRC.

Planned Farpet

CentrePort to formally revicw. at least annually, the company’s compliance with all environmental Jegislation, district and regional plans and conditions of resource
Actual Performance

Achieved. Regulatory review undertaking slong with a specific review of Resource Consents/Permits reswlting in the granting of time extensions on dredging permits
held. Monitoring of environmental effects also undertaken.

Planned Target

CentrePoit to establish a sustainability programme with measurable performance criteria covering as a minimum the monitering of waste and greenhouse gas emissions.
Actual Performance

Achieved. Policy established and sustainability now part of CentrePort’s overall business ethos. Carbon faotprint and wasle recycling perfonmance reviewed against
2008 baseline position.

Planned Target

Centreport 10 mainlain an environment issues register of environnental complaints and issues for monitoring and actioning puposes. The register 1o be reported to
CPL's Health, Safety and Environmental Committee on a regular basis (meets at least 3 times per annum).

Actual Performance

Achieved. No issues of materiality recorded,

Planned Target

CentrePort Lid will hold a minimum of three Environmental Consuliative Comimnitiee meetings in 2008/09 comprising CPL and affected stakeholders (customers. port
users. tocal authorities and residential groups), The mectings provide a forum 1o identify and inform on & range of environmental pori relaled matters,

Actual Performance

Achieved. CentrePort held 3 meetings. Iwi representation included.

Planned Target

The Group 1o comply with all conditions under resource consents and permits held. and ful} adherence to the reguirements of environmental law generally.
Actual Performance

The Group has comphied with all of ifs resource consents.

Planned Target

The Group (o establish a sustainability programme with measurable perfernance criteria.

Actual Performance

The Group. excluding CentrePort Ltd. has established 2 sustainability programme via Greater Weilinglon.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Manned Target

CentrePorl 1o maintain tertiary level of compliance with the ACC Workplace Safety Management Practices Programme and comply with the AS/NZS 4801:
Occupational Health and Safety Management Systesim,

Actial Performance

Achieved. ACC fertiary certificate received November 2008,

Planned Target
CentrePort to maintain compliance with the Intermational Ship & Port Security (ISPS) Code which promotes security against serarism within the port environment,

Actual Performance
Achieved. Certified compliant untit October 2009.

Planned Target

CentrePort to undertake risk assessments and implement any mitigating procedures relating to the Port & Harbour Safety Code which promotes safety and excelience in
[marine eperations,

Actual Performance

Achieved, In 2006, CentrePort Lid in conjunction with the Harbour Master conducted a risk assessment review as part of the reguirements of the Port and Harbour
Safety Code. CentrePort Ltd and GWRC are progressing the assessment and implementation of recommendations from that review with the next initiative the Beacon
Hill signal station upgrade.

Planned Target

CentrePort to underiake an appropriate level of community sponsership.
Actual Performance

Achieved. CentrePort contributed $81.734 to community sponsorship.

Planned Target

To meet regularly with representative comimunity groups,
Actual Performance

Achieved.

Planned Target

CentrePort to provide opportuaities for employee growth. development. improvement and recognition.
Actual Performance

Achieved. Key initiatives in 2009 were the extension of our leadership development programme to tier three managers and 43 employees entering info national training
contracts to gain level 3 accreditation in Cargo Handling. Mine staff achieved accreditation in 2009,

Planned Target

CentrePort 1o underiake an annual review of Health and Safety Policy.
Actual Performance

Achieved.

GENERAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Planned Target

‘The Company will, in consultation with: shareholders, continue to develap performance targets ii the environmental and social areas in order 1o be able 1o maintain
triple bottom line reporting in accordance with best practice.

Actual Performance

Achieved. The 2010 SCI has 1 new environmental targel and 1 revised environmental {arget.

Planned Target

‘When developing "property helg for development” the Board is lo adhere to the foliowing principles:

s Properties may be developed without the building being fuily pre-let so long as tenance risk is managed prudently
» Property developments must not compromise port operations

» Developments are 10 be undertaken only if they are able to be funded without additional capital from shareholders.

Actual Performance
Achieved. Investment property 10 accortunodase NZ Customs Service meets the pre-let requirements.

Planned Target

CentvePort Board has resolved 1o partition the company into two business streams of pert and property. Shareholders support this initiative to achieve an optimum
company structure, while simultaneously developing the property asset base and maintaining focus on the port operations. CentrePort and shateholders wilt continue to
work coilaboratively on the implementation of an optimum company structure encompassing legal entities, asset segregation. financing from the possible sell-down of
property assets and dividend poticy,

Actual Performance
Achieved. Centreport has established Centreport Properties Limited as a vehicle for our property assets. Work is progressing on financing options.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Motes

Operating Revenue
Change in Financial Instriment Fair Value 14
Share of agsociate profit accounted for using the equity method

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

(=]

Increase in the value of Developed Investment Property
Met change in value of Land available for Development

Operating Expenses 2
Enpairment of Assets 9
OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXATION

Net Interest costs 2
OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE INCOME TAXATION AND

SUBVENTION PAYMENT 2

Subvention payments 10

Ingome Taxation 10

NET SURPLUS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST

Share of surplus atiributable to winority interest 4

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS

WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Notes

Eguity - opening baiance as at I July 2008

Shares Issued during the year

Assel revaluation gains taken directly to equity

Asset revaluation gains taken directly to equity attributable to minority interest

Nel income recognised directly in equity

Net surplusi{deficit) for the year before minority interest

Total recognised income and expenses for the year

Dividends aluibuiable ju.

Equity holders of the parent 12
Minority interest 94
Total dividends

Total recognised income and expenses for the period

Balance as at 30 June 2009 3

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
3000 5000 50600 5000
59,270 57.014 5371 3.508
1.065 (779) - -
542 315 - -
60,877 56.550 3.371 3.908
(6.578) (66) - -
{4.468) {764) - -
{41.151}) {39.333) (1.624) (114}
{777} - - -
7903 16.387 37347 3,794
(8.481} (8951 (2.342) {3.683)
(578) 7.436 1.405 111
{893} (1631 - -
(2.412) (3.200) -
(3,885 3.205 1.405 111
303 (1,603} - -
(3,382) 1,602 1,405 111
Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 5000 Sooo 3000
164,834 162.194 14,807 14,161
975 599 975 599
{3.885) 3,205 1.405 111
(3.883) 3.205 1.405 111
(1.659} (64) {1.659) (64)
{1.193) {1.101) - -
{2.852) (31.165) (1.659) (64)
(6.737) 2.040 {253) 47
159,072 164,833 15,529 14,807
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

EQUITY

Tssued and paid up capital

Retained earnings
Capital reserve - CentrePort Limited
Operating surpluses/{deficits)

Totai retained camings

Revaluation reserve

Minority interest

TOTAL EQUITY

Represented by:

ASSETS

Currenf Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Taxation refund

Current account - Greater Weilingion Regional Council
Current account - Pringle House I.td

Invenories

Total Current Assets

Non Current Assets
Investment preperties
Investments

Financial Instruments
Property. Plant & Equipment
Deferred tax

Intangible assets

Total Non Current Asse(s
TOTAL ASSETS

Less:

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Bank overdrafl

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Dividend payable

Provision for subveation payments
Taxation payable

Revenue in advance

Provision for employee entitlements

Total Current Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Borowings

Deferred 1axasion liability

Provision for employee entitlements

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

e

For, and on behalf.of 1he Board 9_#’ Directors

S

/| Rt

Director e 2l W

“/"\,« - ' - . roSEDlember 24,

L/’

September 24,

Notes

3009

2009

14

10
16

13
12
10
10

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
%000 5000 $000 3000
36,115 35,140 36.115 35140
35,031 42,042 -
1,728 (42) (20,586) (20.333)
36,739 41,999
43,060 43.060 . -
43,138 44,634 - .
159,072 164,833 15,529 14,807
21 820 i 1
7.452 7.004 1.785 183
1.119 - - -
1.817 432 {143) 42
- - 1.557 1.824
1.092 663 -
11,651 8924 3.640 2,050
216.182 116,345 - -
1811 1.597 56.327 56.857
5.43% 2,187 1.251 -
220.290 257.646 - -
- 1,920 -

959 942 - -
444,681 380,637 57,578 36.857
456,372 389,561 61,218 58,907

2187 - - -
10,260 13.024 30 36
45,148 44,000 44.000 44,000

2121 479 1.65% 64

895 1.031 - N

- 233
61.219 33.075 -

2,194 2,084 -
124.024 93.928 45.689 44,100
170.531 128.932 - -

2.065 1.168 -

680 760 - -
173.276 130.800 -
29'7.30u 24, 728 45,089 44,100
E59.072 164,833 15,529 14,807

e

% y % - .
The accompanying notes andmc‘éf;untmg policies forn part of these financial statements,
7 o
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Casi was Provided from:

Receipis from Customers

Dividend Income Received

Income Taxation Received

Inierest Income Received

Other Income

Casl was disbirsed to:

TFayments to Suppliers and Employees

Subvention Payments 1o Greater Wellinglon Regional Council
Income Taxation paid

Interest Expense paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Praceeds from Sale of Property. Plant & Equipment
Investment in Foinl Venture

Repayment of Loans by Associate Company

Cash was Applied to:

Purchase of Preperty. Plant & Equipment

Development of Investment Propertics

Subsidary Company Shares

Purchase of Intangible Assets

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was Provided from:

Proceeds from Borrowings

Issue of Grdinary Shares

Movement in Current Account - Pringle House Limited

Cash was applied to:

Settlemeni of Loans

Movement in current account - Greater Wellington Regional Couneil
Dividends Paid to Shareholders of the Company

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase / {Decrease) in Cash Held
Add Opening Cash / (Overdraft) Brought Forward
ENDING CASH CARRIED FORWARD

The accompanying notes and accounting policies form part of these financial statements.

Notes

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 000 5000 $000
56.443 50,987 -
328 350 - 304
22 16 - -

- - 2342 4.124
(33.484) (28.703) -
(532} {2,265) - N
(8.481) (9.082) 2.342) (4.124)
14,296 11,303 - 304

230 1,000 -

- (1,000} - .
(53.169) (55,082) -

- ®en - -

975) (599)
(355) (279} - -
(53,294) (55,422) (975) (599)
41.600 14.679 - .
975 599 975 599
{3.040) 759 -

- (176) - (176)
{1.146) (1,229) - (128)
18,389 44,632 975 295

(609) 313 - B
820 307 1 I
211 820 1 1
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE t
Statement of Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The "Group" consists of WRC Holdings Ltd. its wholly owned subsidiaries, Pringle House Ltd. Port Investments Ltd, Greater Wellington Rail Ltd. Greater Wellington
Transport Lid, Greater Wellington Infrastructure Ltd and its 76,9% subsidiary CentrePort Led, together with its subsidiaries. as disclosed in Note 7.

The financial statemends are presented in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1993, the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the Local Government
Aet 2002 and New Zealand Generally Accepled Accounting Practices (NZ GAAP).

Compliance with the New Zealand Intemmationa] Financial Reporting Standards (NZ [FRS) ensures that the consolidated financial statements comply with international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Group (inancial statements and notes also comply with IFRS.

Basis of Preparation

‘The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of histerical cost except for the revaluation of Operating Port Freehold Land and Invesiment Properties
{Dreveloped Investment Properties and Land Available for Development) and financial instruments as outlined below.

Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for asseis.

The going concern concepi has been adopied in the preparation of these financial statements.
These financial staiements are prepared in accordance with NZ [FRS. as appropriate for profit oviented entities.

Accounting policies are selecled and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliabifity.
thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial slatements for the year ended 30 June 2005, the comparative infonnation presented
in these financial siatements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Specific Accounting Policies
The foliowing accounting poticies which inaterially affect the financial statements have been consistently applied and are set out below.

1.1 Basis of Consolidation

The Groap financial statements include WRC Holdings Ltd and iis subsidiaries. The subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase methoed which involves adding
together corresponding assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses on a fine by line basis, The associate companies are accounted for on an equily acceunting basis. which
shows the share of surplus/deficits in the Group's income statement and share of post acquisition increases/decreases in net assets in the Group's balance sheet,

On acquisition. the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured al fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If. after reassessment. the fair value of the identifiable net asscts acquired exceeds
the cost of acquisition. the difference is credited 1o the income statement i the period of acquisition.

The Group's share of the nel surplus of associate companies is recognised as a component of revenue in the consolidated income statement. Dividends received from
associate comnpanies are eredited to the carrving amount of the investment,

All significant inter-cormpany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

1.2 Statement of Cash Flows
The following are $he definitions used in the staiement of cash fows:

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and investnents in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

{b) Investing activities are those activities relating to 1he acquisition. holding and dispesal of fixed assets and of invesfments.
Investments iaclude securities not falling within the definftion of cash.

{¢) Financing activities are those activities which resull in the changes in size and composition of the capital structure of the Group.
This includes both equity and debt aol failing within the definition of cash. Dividends paid to shareholders are included in financing activities.

(d) Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are net investing or financing activities,

{e} Goods and Services Tax (GST}) is accounted for on an aceruals basis consistent witl the income stalement.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1.3 Revenue
Revenue shown in the income statement comprises the amounts received and receivable by the Group for services provided to custowers in the ordinary course of
business based an the stage of completion of the contract al balance sheet date.

Grants for asset purchases are initially recognised in the balance sheet s deferred income and only recognised in the income statemnent over parieds necessary 1o match
them with the related use over the life of the asset.

Otlier grants and contributions from termiorial lecal authorities are recognised in the income stalement when eligibility has been established by the grantor.
Income is stated exclusive of G3T coliected from customers.
Enterest and dividend incoeme are recognised on an accrual basis.

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group has six classes of Property. Plant and Equipinent
Freehold and

Buildings. wharves and paving

Cranes and floating plant

Plant. vehicles and equipment

Raii rolling stock

Other assets

Operational port freehold land is stated at valuation detennined every three years by an independent registered valuer. The basis of valuation is fair value which is
detenmined by reference to the assets highest and best use as determined by an independeni valuer. The fair values are recognised in the financial statements of the
Group, and are reviewed at the end of each reporting period {o ensure that the carrying value of fand and buildings is not materialiy different from their fair values. Any
increase in the value on revaluation is taken directly to the revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in vajue for the same asset recognised in the income
istatement, in which case if is recognised in the balance sheet, A decrease in the value on revaluation is recognised in the income Statement where if exceeds the
increase of that asset previously recognised in the revaluation reserve.

The remaining property, plant and equipment acquired by CentrePort on | Qctober 1988 are recorded al cost. less accumulated depreciation and impairment, based on
a business valuation carried out in accordance with the company plan under section 21 of the Pori Companies Act 1988.

Subsequent purchases of remaining property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Cast represents the value of the consideration given to acquire the assets and
the value of other directly attributable costs which have been incurred in bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for their intended service. All {lese
property. plant and equipment are depreciated excluding land.

1.5 Investment Properties
Investment properiies, which is property held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation. is measured at its fair value at the reporiing date. Geins or losses arising
{from changes in fair value of investinent property are included in profil or loss in the peried in which they arise,

The Group has two classes of investment properties:
Peveloped investineat properties
Land available for development

1.6 Leased Assets
Group enfities lease certain land. buildings. wharves and planl. Leases are finance leases wherever the tenms of (he lease fransfer substantially ail the risk and rewards
of ewnership (o the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. All leases held by the Group are classified as operating leases.

Consolidated entity as lessee:
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Consolidated entity as lessor:

Operating leases relate to subleases of surplus of properties leased by the company for ils own operation use. with lease terms between 1 and 12 years. with an optien 1o
extend for a further period between 1 to 6 years, All operating lease contracls contain market review clauses in the event that the Group exercises its option to renew.
The lessee does note have an option 1o purchase the propesty at expiry of (ke lease period.

Lease incentives:

In the event that lease incentives are recejved 1o enler into operating leases. such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of incentives are
recognised as a reduction of yental expense on a straight-line basis. except where another systematic basis is more representative of the ime pattem in which economic
henefils from the Jeased asset are consumed.

1.7 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as keld for sale are measured ai the lower of carrying amouns and fair value less costs 1o seli.

MNon-current assets and disposal groups as classified as held for sale if their carying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This conditien Is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for iminediate sale in its present condition. The
sale of the asset {or disposal group) is expected (o be completed within ane year from the date of classification, .

1.5 Intangibles
Software is a finile life intangible and is recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is charzed on a siraight line basis over their
estimated useful fives between 1 and 3 years. The estiimated usefui life and amortisation method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1.9 Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounis of its tangible and intangible assets 1o determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impainment Joss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the exient of the impairment loss (f
any). Where the assel does not generate cash fiows that are independent from other assets, the consolidation enfity estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating using to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 1ime value of money and the risks specific 10 the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount off an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated 1o be less than ils carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
uniit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment Joss is recognised in the income statement immediately. unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value. in
which case the impainnent loss is weated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impainnent loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of ihe asset (cash-generating unit) is inereased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had not impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income stafement immediately, unless the relevant
assets is carried at fair vatue, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaiuation increase.

1.10 Depreciation
There is no depreciation on capital works in progress and eperationai port land. Depreciation on ali other property plant and equipment is charged on a straight line
basis 5o as 1o write off the cost of the assels to their estimated residual value over their expected economic lives. The expected economic lives are as follows:

Buildings, wharves and paving 10 to 530 years
Cranes and floating plant 4 to 50 years
Plant. vehicles and equipment 2 10 20 years
Rail rofling stock 20 to 35 years
Other assets 0 to 20 years

The econcmic useful lives, residual values and depreciation method is reviewed a1 the end of each annual reporting period,

1.11 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to capital construction are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. All ather borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

1.12 Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are valued annually at the Jower of cost and net asset backing, The change in valuation is recognised in the income statement.

Investments in associates are stated at the fair market value of the net tangible assets at acquisition plus the share of post-acquisition increases in reserves.

Investiment properties are revalued annuatly 1o net current value, The change in valuation is recognised in the income statement. There is not any depreciation on
invesfiment properties.

Other invesfments are stated at the lower of cost and fair vajue,

1.127 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposit hield at call with banks. other short tenn highly liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less.

1.13 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Provision bas been made for
obsolescence where applicable.

1.14 Income Taxation

Current Tax

Current tax is calculated by reference (o the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or 1ax loss for the period, 1t is caleulated
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a lability (or
asset) 1o the extent that it is unpaid {or refundable). Tax assets and liabilifies are offset only when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and intends (o settle on a net basis,

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of iemporary differences arsing from differences between the canying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statemenis and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principie. deferred tax liabilities are recogmised for ail taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recogaised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable amounts will be available against which deductible temporary differences or unused tax fosses and tax offsets can be wilised. Rowever, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are nol recognised if the temporary differences wiving rise t¢ them arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of 2 business
combination) which affecis neither taxable income nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable femporary differences arising on investiments in subsidiaries, branches, associates and joint ventures except where the
consolidated entity is abje o control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Page 13



WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1.14 Income Taxation - continued
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible 1emporary differences associated with these investments and interests are only recogtised to the extent that it is probable
that there wili be sufficient taxable profits against which 1o utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expecled to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the asset and liability giving rise 1o them are realised or
settled. based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferved tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects. at the reporting date. to recover or settle the camying amount of its assels
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right (o set ofT income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to sefile its current 1ax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in fhie income statemnent, except when if relates 1o items credited or debited directly te equity. in which
case the deferred 1ax is also recognised directly in equity. or where it arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, in which case it is taken inlo account
in the detenmination of goodwiil or excess,

1.15 Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The Group is part of the Wellington Regional Council GST Group. All items in the financial statements are exclusive of GST. with the exception of CentrePort's
receivables and payabies. which are consolidated inclusive of GST.

Where GST is not recoverable as an input Lax it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

1.16 Employee Entitlements

A provision for employee entitlements is recognised as a liability in respeet of benefils eamed by employees bul not yet paid at balance date. Employee benefits include
salarics, wages, annual feave and long service leave. Where the services thal gave rse to the employee benefits are expected to be paid for withins twelve months of
balance date. the provision is the estimated amount expected (o be paid by the Group. The provision for other emptoyee benefiis is stated at the present value of the
future cash outflows expected te be incurved.

The present value is determined by discounting the future cash flows at & pre-tax rate that reflects cument imarket assessments of the tine valve of money and the risks
specific to the liabilities.

1.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event. the future sacrifice of economic benefiis is probable. and the amount of
the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recogaised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation al reporting date, taking into acconnt the risks and
uncertainties swrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated 1o settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows,

1.8 Provisien for Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the period that they are authorised and approved.

1.19 Financial Ins{rumenis

As part of normal operations. the Group is party to financial instruments with off balance sheet risk to meet financing needs. These financial instruments include bank
overdraft Facilities. forward interest rate and interest swap agreciments. Forward interest rate and interest swap agreements are used within predetenmined policies and
limits in order to manage interest rate exposure. The differential to be paid or received is accrued as interest rates change and is recognised as a component of interest
income / expense over ihe life of the agreements,

Offsetting financiai instruments
Financial assets and labilities are offset and the nel amount reported in the balance sheet only whea there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention Lo setie on a net basis. or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.20 Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase and sale of an investment is under a confract whose terms require delivery of the
investments within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initiatly at fair value. plus transactions costs, except for those financial assets classified
a3 ot fnir voluc through profit or loas, which are initinlly measured of fair valuc.

Subsequent to initial recognition. investments i subsidiaries are measured at cost. Subsequent 1o initial recognition. investmenis in joint ventures are accounied for
under the equity methad in the consolidated financial statements.

Other financial assets are classified into the following specified categorics: financial assets ‘at fair value through profii or loss'. and ‘loans and receivables’. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is defermined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets are fajr value through income statement
The Group has classified certain derivative insiruments as financial assets at fair value through the income stateemnt. The policy for these items is outlined in note 1.22

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables. loans. and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less impairment.

The effective interest rale is the rate thai exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the insacument or a shorter period.
where appropriate, 10 the net carrying amount of the financial assets or financial liability
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1.21 Financial liabilities

Pavables

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments restlting from the purchase of goads and services
and are subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initiatly at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised costs with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value
being recognised in profii and loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

1.22 Derivative financial instruments
The consolidated entity enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to inferest rate and foreign exchange rate risk. including forward
foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are injtially recognised at cost on the date a derivative contract is entered into, which is equivalent 10 fair value. and are subsequenily re-measured to fair
value at each reporting date. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised inunediately in income statement,

Cash settlements of derjvatives adjust {he line in the income statement to which they relate.

1.23 Financial instruments issucd by the company

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are classified as either liabilities or as equity in aceordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

TDividends

Dividends are classified as expenses or as distributions of profit consistent with the statement of financial position classification of the related equity
instrument.

1.24 Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are converied at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Al balance date, foreign monetary assets and linbilities are
translated at the closing rate and exchange variations arising from these transactions are recognised in the income statement.

1.25 Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a contractua) arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an ecanomic activity that is subject to joint control that is when the
strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating fo the activities of the joint venture require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The resulis and assets and {iabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in the Group financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment is clagsified as held for sale. in which case it is accounted for in accordance with NZ IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,

Under the eguity method, investments in joint ventures are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusied for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the joint venture, less any impainnent in the value of individual investments. Losses of a jeint venture in excess of the Group's inferest in that joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance. fonm part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture) are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made paymenis on behalf of the joint venture,

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the joint venture
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goedwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of that investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition.
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Where a Group entity transacts with a jeint venture of the Group. profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the relevant joint venture.
Interests in jointly controlied entities are recognised in the parent company's {inancial statements using the cost method.
1.26 Adoption of new and revised Standards

Early adoption of Standards and Intrepretations

The Group has elected to adopt the following in advance of their effective dates:

INZ1AS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs {effective for accounting penods beginming on or after | lanuary 200%):

The revisions to NZ JAS 23 have had no impact on the Group's accounting policies, Fhe principal change to the Standard, which was to eliminate the previously

available option to expease all borrowing costs when incwited. has no impact on these financial statemments because it has always been the Group’s accounting policy to
capitalise borrowing costs incurred on qualifying assers.

NZ IFRS § Operating Segments (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2009 and the revisions (o NZ [FRS § also did not impact on the
Group’s accounting policy as the Group has always designated reporiable segments

1.27 Changes in Accounting Policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies adopted in the last audited financial statements.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Standards or intreprefations in issue not et effective

Bmprovement to NZIFRS 2008 -
NZ IAS 40 Investment Properties (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008);

The revisions 10 NZ IAS 40 require that properties being developed for future use as development properties can be classified as Investment Properties instead of
property. plant and equipment, Had this amendment been applied. the Company and Group would have realised an increase in pre-tax profit of $0.8m (June 2008
$5.3m).

Varous other standards. amendments and interpretations have been issued by the Accounting Standards Review Board {ASRB) and the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) but have not been adopied by the Group as they are not yet effective.

Application of these standards. amendments and interpretatians. is not expected 1o have a material impact on the Group’s financial position and resulis in the period of
initial application

1.28 Key Management Assumptions and Uncertainities

Retirement Gratuity Allowanee
The valuatien is on a discounted cash flow basis whereby the fulure cash flow Lability is discounted usizg a discount rats based on the 10-year governunent bond yield
al balance date.

Financial Instruments
Fair value is the amount for what could be exchanged, or a liability settled. between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction. Refer fo note 14 for
details of fair values of derivatives.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Certain items of property, plant and egquipment have been revalued to fair value at 30 June 2007. Invesoment Properiies have been revalued to fair value at 30 June
2009, Refer to note 8 and 9 respectively for disciosure about the valuations and valuation methodology.

The Board and management have undertaken a process to determing what constitutes Investment Property and what constitutes property. plant and equipment. There
was an element of judgement in: this. There is a developed port plan. and those itemns of land that are considered integral to the operations of the port have been included
in operational port land. Land held specifically for capital appreciation or to derive income rental have been classified as investment property.

CentrePort estimates that $14 million of future infrastructure costs will be incurred to create investment property sites at Harbour Quays. These future costs have been
1aken into account when determining the fair value of investinent properties as 30 June 2009,
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE2
Operating Surplus before Subvention and Taxation Group Parent

Notes 2009 2008 2000 2008

5000 S000 000 3000

Operating surpius before subvention and taxation 78 7436 1.405 I
After Crediting:
REVENUE
Porl Income 42.680 41.881 - -
Rental Income 12,382 12.188 - -
Grants from Greater Wellington Regional Council 2239 2,448 -
Equity accounted earnings of associale companies 342 313 - -
Dividend Income from subsidiaries - - 1.778 173
Change in financial instrument fair value 14 1.065 {779) - -
Gain on sale of fixed assets 230 448 - -
Interest revenue 69 49 2.342 3.686
Write up of investment in subsidiaries - - - 49
Gain on Sale of Medical Waste - - -
Other revenue 1.670 1,251 -
‘Total Operating Revenue 60.877 56.550 5.37% 3.908
Increase/decrease in the value of developed investment property (6.578) (66) - -
Increase/decrease in the value of land available for development (4.468) (764} - .
Change in value of Investment property {11,046} (838) - -
After Charging:
Impairment of Assets 7 - - -
EXPENSES
Aanortisation H 338 356 - -
Bad debis written {back)Moff 19 194 - -
Change in provision for doubiful debis 126 85 - -
Depreciation 9 6,904 6,490
Dirzctors fees and expenses 387 396 8 9
Einployee benefits expense 15.672 15401 - -
Energy costs (Pringle House only) 34 25 - -
Tees paid to company auditors for:
- Audit NZ: audit services 3 31 I3 15
- Other auditor: audit services 93 72 - -
- Audit NZ: other assurance services - - - -
- Other auditor: other assurance services 5 32 -
- Other auditor: tax services 48 98 14 ¢
Consultant and Professional fees 5 759
Fixed Assets Written Off . -
Insurance 278 262 5 5
Legal Fees 1 381
Loss on sale of fixed assets - -
Managemenl fees 346 339 54 36
Maintenance 4,262 295 - -
Rates 186 164 . -
Rental and lease expenses 943 644 - -
Qther operating expenses i1.471 13.307 1.528 20
Total Operating Expenses 41.151 39.333 1.624 114
Interest expense 12.499 11,721 2.342 3683
Interest capitalised {4.018) (2.770) - -
Net interest 8.481 8.951 2.342 3.683
Operating Surplus before Subvention and Taxation (578) 7,436 1,405 111
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 3
Equity

Ordinary Share Capital

50.000.000 51 shares. uncalled

34,541.100 $1 shares. fully paid
22.170.000 51 shares, part paid 1o 7.1 cents
Redeemable Preference Share Capital
25,000 $1000 shares. paid to | cent

Total share capitaj

Revaluation Reserve
Operational port land
Total Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation reserve brought forward
Transfer from eperational post land
Gain on property valuation
Revaluation reserve carried [erward

Retained Earnings / (Deficit) brought forward

Operating surplus after income tax

Transfer from operational port land

Dividends

Retzined Earnings / (Deficit) carried forward

Minority Interest
Total Equity

Included in Retained Earnings:
Investment Property Reserves
Developed investment properties
Land available for development
Total Investment Property Reserve

Notes

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 3000 5000 000
34.541 34341 36,115 35140
1574 399
36115 35.140 36.115 35140
43.060 43,060 - -
43.060 43.060 -
43.060 43.060 - -
43.060 43.060 -
42.00% 40,464 {20:333) {20.380)
{3.58) 1.601 1,405 i
(L.65%) (64} (1.659} 64)
36.760 42,001 (20.587} (20.333)
43,137 44,632 - -
155,072 164,833 15.528 14,807
5,658 11.164 - -
19.956 33,393 -
25.614 34,557 - -
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTE 4

Minority Interest

Opening minority interest
Minority share of operating surplus

Total Mingrity Interest

NOTE 5

Receivables and Prepayments

Trade receivables

Provisioning for doubtiul debts

Other receivables

Prepayments

Shareholder subvention receivable
Interest receivable

Dividends receivable

Total Receivables and Prepayments

Provision of Doubtiul debts

Opening balance
Amounts writlen off during the year
Amounts recovered during the year

Closing balance

NOTE 6

Current Accounts

Current account - Pringle House Lid

Total Current Accounts

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Minority share of asset revajuation gains taken directly 1o equity
Minority share of dividends paid or pavable

Increased in allowance recognised in Profit & Loss

Current account - Greater Wellington Regional Council

Minority interest represent the Manawatu-Wanganui Regional Council's 23.1% share of CentrePort Lid.

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
s000 5000 000 %000
44,631 44.129 -
{303) 1.603 -
(1.193) {1.101) - -
43.135 44,631 - -
Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
3600 5000 5000 5000
6,065 6,458 - .
(182) (214) -
602 165 - -
967 395 - -
- - 7 10
- - i,778 173
7452 7,004 1,785 183
Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 5000 $000 5000
214 129 - -
(158) (323 - -
(14) - -
126 222 - -
182 214 - -

Inciuded in the allowance for doubtful debts are $182.000 of debtor balances where the respective company is in receivership or liguidation.

The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days. No interest is charged on the trade receivables. An allowance has been made for cstimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of services. determined by reference io past default experience .

Inciuded in trade receivables ave debtors with a catvying amount of $1,050.000 which are past due at 3¢ June 2009. The Group believes that the amounts (net of
doubtful debt provision) are recoverable,

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
3000 5000 5000 5000
- - 1.997 1.824
1.817 432 {143) 42
1.817 432 1,854 1.866
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

NOTE 7
Investments

Name

Pringle House Litd

Tort [avestments Lid

Greater Weilingten Rail Ltd
Greater Wellingten Transpost Lid
Greater Weliington Infrastructure 1.d
CentrePori Lid

Central Stevedoring Ltd
CentrePort Properties Limited®
Port of Wellington {1988) Lid
CentrePac Lid

Transport Systemms 2000 Lid
Wellington Port Coldsiores Lid

port. This ransaction was completed in July 2008,

Investments in Subsidiary Companies

Pringle House Lid

Port Investments Lid

Greater Wellington Rail Ltd

Greater Wellington Transport Ld

Grealer Wellington Infrastructure Lid
Total investments in subsidiary companies

Investment in Associate Companies - are stated :

at the fair market value of net tangibfe assets

at acquisition plus post acquisition increases in reserves
Carrying Amount at Beginning of Year

Equity accounted eamings of associzle companies
Dividends from associate companies

Dividends from joint veatures

Inveshment in joint venture during the year

Carrying Amount at End of Year

Qther Investments - are stated :
at the lower of cost and fair value

Advance to subsidiary

Total investments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Relationship
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture

Tnvestiments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value and comprise

*Re.named CentrePort Properties Eid on 2 Taly 2008. previously Port Wellington Limited

Equity Held
(100%)
{100%)
(100%)
(100%)
(100%)
(76.9%)
(76.9%)
{76.9%)
(76.9%)
(38.5%)
(38.5%)
(38.5%)

Notes

All group companies have a common balance date of 3¢ June and all significani inter-company transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

Principal Activity
Property owner
[nvestinent management
Rail rolling stock owner
Inactive company
inactive company

Poit operations

Inactive company
Inactive company

Asser ownership
Container packing
Storage. wash and repair of containers
Coolstore opearation

During the year CentrePort L1d entered into a 50% joint venture agreement to purchase Wellington Port Coldstore, a coolstore operation located on the

Group Parent
2009 2068 2009 2008
3000 3000 000 5000
- 16,753 12,258
- 1.574 599
- - 12327 12.857
1.597 632 -
542 315 -
(328) (350) -
1.000 -
1811 1,597 -
- - 44,000 44.000
1511 1,597 56327 56.857
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE S8
Properties
Group Parent
Notes 2009 2008 2009 1008
5000 5000 $000 5000

Developed investinent properties 186.734 78.127 - -
Land available for development 29448 38.218 - -
TOTAL 216,182 116,345 - -
Valuation

Invesbmens properties are revalued every year, Invesiment properties were valued on 30 June 2009 by independent regisiered valuers. The Regional Council Centre at
142-146 Wakefield Street. Wellington was valued by CB Richard Ellis Limited as at 30 June 2009, Colifers International valued the CentrePort investment propertics.
The properties are valued at fair value, The properties are valued in accordance NZ Property Institute Practise Standard 3 - valuations for financial reporting purposes
a1 fair value arrived at using comparable market rental information. The CentrePort valuation assumes the completion of the Harbour Quays deveiopment plan as
approved by the CentrePort Board and certain casts to complete the infrastructure development for its intended use have been identified to the inspection date of 30
June 2009. The fair value of investment properties valued was $216.2 million (2008: $116 million).

Reconcilintion of movements in value of investment properties

Group Parent

2009 2008 2009 2008

5000 5000 5000 000
Developed investment properties brought forward 78.127 78.130 - .
Additions to investment property 12.364 6} - -
Transfer from (10) property plant & equipment 98.387 0 - -
Transfer from (10) land available for development 4,302
Net change in the value of developed investment property (6.446) (64) - -
Developed invesunent properties carried forward 186,734 78.127 - -
Land available for development brought forward 38218 37.999 - -
Transfer from (10) developed investment property {4.302)
Net change in the valve of land available foy development {4.468) 215 - -
Land available for developiment carried forward 29.448 38.218 - -
TOTAL 216.182 116345 - -
The Group's investiment properties comprise: .

(a) The Regional Councii Centre at 142-146 Wakefield Street. Wellington.
(b) CeatrePort's developed and undeveloped investment properties.

WRC Holdings Ltd has an unsecured advance facility of $44 million with its subsidiary, Port Investments Ltd. The facility matures on 28 October 2018,
The interest rate charged on the facility as at 30 June 2009 was 2.62% p.a. {30 June 2008: 8.37% p.a.).

Disclosvure required for amounts recognised in the profit & loss for Centreport :

i} Rental income from investiment property $8.1 million (2008:37.1 miilion)

ii) Direct operating expenses (including repairs & maintenance) arising from investinent property that generated income during the perfod $2.% million (2008 §2.6
million)

iii) Direct operating expenses {including repairs & maintenance) arsing from investment property that did not generate rental income during the period $0.03 million
(2008: $0.03 million)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
NOTE 9

Property, Plant & Equipment

Operational  Buildings, Crancsand  Property, Work In Rail Rolling Tuotal
Port and Wharves, Floating Plant and Progress Stock at cost
freehold  and Pavings Equipment Equipment
Group - 2009 land at fair af cosi at cost at cost
value
Gross Carrying Amount
3000 5000 5000 $000 3000 000 30040

Batance a1 1 July 2008 * 76.344 148.944 39.851 8272 8.887 25.363 307.661
Transfers - {99.476) . - - . 199.476)
Additions - 49.156 - 1.807 17,753 - 68,716
Disposals - () (8) {164) - - (173)
Adjustmenis from revaluation increases/decreases - (1.778) - (1.778)
Balance at 30 June 2009 76,344 96,845 39.843 9.915 26.640 25.363 274,950
Accumulated Depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Balanee at | July 2008 - 34.136 8.393 6488 - 99§ 50.015
Transfers - (1.089) . - . . [RRIRE
Depreciation expense . 3,065 1,961 610 - 1268 6,904
Amortisation and impairment expense - - . - - - -
Disposals - {1} (8) (360) - - HEsH
Adjustments from revaluation increases/decreases - (1.00H) - - - - RN
Balance at 30 June 2009 - 35,110 10,346 6,938 - 2.266 54,660
* inciudes discount on acquisition
Net Book Value
as at 30 June 2009 76,344 61,735 29.497 2,977 26,640 23,097 220,290
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NOTE 9 Continued
Property, Plant & Equipment
Operational  Buildings, Cranes and  Property, Other Assets Rail Rolling Total

Port and Wharves, Floating Plant and at cost Stock af cost

freehold  and Pavings Equipment  Equipment
Group — 2008 fand at fair at cost at cost at cost

value
Gross Carrying Amount
000 3600 3000 5000 5000 5000 3000

Balance at 1 July 2007 * 78.764 94.31] 15666 9.406 1.099 19.80% 239.055
Transfers (2.420) 2420 - - - - -
Additions 32.361 5.435 925 - 14.441 73.162
Disposals - (148) (1.250) (2.059) (1,099) - (4.356)
Adjusunents from revaluation increases/decreases - - - - - - -
Balunce at 30 June 2008 76,344 148,944 39.851 8,272 - 34,250 307,661
Accumutated Depreciation/amortisation and Impairment
Balance at | July 2007 - 31,195 7.340 7816 780 . 47.13§
Transfers - . R R . - -
Depreciation expense - 1.058 1.819 615 - 99§ 6.490
Amortisation and impainment expense - - - - - - -
Disposals - {17 (766) (1.943) (780} - (3.606)
Adjustments from revaluation increases/decreases - - - . . - .
Balance at 30 June 2008 - 34,136 8,393 6.483 - 998 50.013
* includes discount on acquisition
Net Bogk Value
As at 30 June 2008 76,344 114,808 31,458 1,784 - 33,252 257.646

Impairment

The directors have reviewed assets and tested for impairment. As a resull an imparement of $777.000 (2008 nil) for CenirePort has been recognised in the income
statement.

Borrowing Coests Capitalised

During the year borrowing costs of $4.018 million (2068: $2.770 million) were capitalised. The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed was 6.61%
(2007: 7.63%).

Investment Properties Work In Progress
Included in Property. plant and equipment (sub category Buildings, Wharves and paving) is §12 million (2008: $58 million) associated with the development of
investiment propesties. On completion these work-in-progress amounts will be reclassified as investment properties.

Valuatien

Operational port freehold land is revalued every three years. On 30 June 2007 operational port freehold land was independenty valued by registered valuers of the firm
Colliers Intemational. The valuations were based on the assels highes! and best use in accordance with New Zealand Property Institute Practise Standard 3 — valuations
for financial reporting purposes with reference to sales evidence of land sales or development sites within the wider Wellington region. Each freehold parcel of Jand is
valued on a per square metre basis by reference 10 the most comparable sales evidence with appropriate adjustments for size. shape and location. The valuation was
$76.3 million. Additions subsequent to the valuation are recorded at cosl.

All other Property, plant & equipment are carried at cost less accwnulated depreciation,
The discount on acguisition of fixed assets resulted from the purchase by Port Investments Lid of 76.9% of CentrePort Lid in 1998/9.

The parent. WRC Holdings Ltd. does not hold any property plant or equipment.
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NOTE 10
Taxation

(a) Inmcome tax recognised in profit or loss

Tax expense/(income) comprises:

Current tax expense/{income)

Adjustments recognised in the current period in relation ta the current tax of
prior periods

Deferred tax expense/(income) relating 1o the arigination and reversal of
temporary differences

Deferred tax expense arising from the write-down. or reversal of previous
write-down. of a deferred tax asset

Impact of change in tax rate
Total tax expense/{benefit)

The pritna facie income fax expense on pre-tax accounting profit fom operations
reconciles 1o the income tax expense in the financial statements as follows:
(Profit)/loss from eperations

Income tax expense/(benefit) calculated at 30% (2008: 33%)

Non-deductible expenses

MNon-assessable income

Land and buiidings reclassification

Tax effect of imputation credits

Temporary differences

Previously unrecognised and unused tax losses now utilised
Tax loss offsets from or subventions paid 1o Greup companies
Unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised

Impact of change in tax rate

Otlser

(Qver)/under provision of income tax in previous period

‘Total tax expense/(benefit)

(b) Tax loss sharing

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
000 £000 5000 S600
SionRl 1.379 - -
Y THv - -
2.816 1.062 - -
1.357 1.013 - -
- L4 - -
1413 3,201 0 0
578 {736y 408 {34
1172 2.454 422 910
3 306 452 -
2054 54 (334} 1ondy
1,063 _ _ 58
{354 O] - -
- 2241 - -
11 1a%) - {26 -
(R - Y -
1.6427 1.310 - -
- (14 - -
351 3310 _ .
g 1R . -
2,413 3,201 R .

On 22 September 1998 WRC Holdings Limited. its wholly owned subsidiaries and CentrePort Limited entered into a Tax Loss Sharing Agreement under which the
WRC Holdings Group will receive subvention payments from CentrePort Limited equivalent 1o 33% of its available losses (now 309}, with the balance of losses offset.
where the companies eleet to do s0. At 30 June 2009, CeanePort Lid had advanced $nil (2008: $il) on account of the subvention payment.
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NOTE 10
Taxation - Continued

(d} Current tax assets and liabilities

Currenf tax assets:
Subvention receivable
Tax refund receivable
Other

Current tax payables:
Income tax payable atiribulable to:

Parent entity
Other

(e) Deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets comprise
Tax losses

Temporary differences
Other

Deferred tax linbilities comprise:
Temporary differences

Group
2009

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Revenue in advance

Other

Total

Group
2008

Cash and cash equivalenis
Investment properties
Property. plan{ and equipment
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

Other
Total

Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following:

Group Parent
2009 2008 2008 2008
000 $000 $000 5000
1.119 - - -
1,119 - -
235 R
- 235 -
10,692 6.854 -
10,692 6,854 - ,
12.756 6.102
12,756 6,102 . 4
Opening  Chargedto  Chargedto  Changein Closing
balance income equity tax rate balance
5000 3600 5000 3000 5000
(3.523) {6,036} . . [BRRELY
5.546 197 . R 5.743
1.168 72 1.240
(33 23] R R 1508}
3,709 - R 3.709
140 e . - -
152 (2.816) . - (2.064)
Opening  Chargedto  Chargedto  Changein Closing
balance ineeme equity tax rate balance
5000 5000 $000 Sno00 5000
(3,742} {1957y . 177 P8R
5.473 140 . (671 5.546
1.002 182 R (16} 1.168
AR ERS 487 . 58 138
62 86 . I£S 140
L.6T0 {1.062) - 144 52
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NOTE 10
Taxation - Continued

Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following;

Parent Opening Charged to  Charged to Change in Closing
209 balance income equity tax rate balance
5000 5000 SQ00 5000 000
Taotal B . . R .
Parent Opening  Chargedto  Chargedte  Changein Closing
2608 balance income cquity {ax rate balance
5000 £000 3000 5000 s000
Total . R - N
Group Parent
Unrecognised deferred tax balances 2009 1008 2009 2008
$000 000 $000 S00:0

The following deferred tax assets have not been brought to account as assets:
Tax losses 1.666 1.551 . 262
Unused tax credits -

Temporary differences - -

1,666 1,551 R 262

Tax losses not recognised

WRC Holdings Limited has fully utilised the unrecognised tax losses of $0.875 miflion brought forward from 2008. As such, WRC Holdings Limited no longer has any
unrecegnised deflerred tax assets,

Port Investments Limited has unrecegnised tax losses of §5,554 million (2008 $4.193 million) available to be carried forward and to be offset against taxable income in
the future. The tax effect of these Josses is $1.666 million {2008: $1.258 miliion).

Greater Wellington Rai? Limited does nol have any unrecognised tax losses as they were fully utilised during the period {2008: §0.105m),

The 2009 financial statements accrue a subvention payment for the viilisation of losses incurred by Greater Wellington Regional Couneil of $0.895 million (2008:
$1.031 million) payable by Pringle House Limited. In addition, a subvention paymens of $1.031 miliion was made during the year by Pringle House Limited relating o
the 2008 net loss of Greater Wellington Regional Council that was utilised in that year.

(e} Imputation credit account balances Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
s000 $000 3000 5000
Bajance at beginning of the period $0.747 0447 476 439
Adttached to dividends received 1.447 1.596 - 100
Taxation paid 731 1.231 - -
Attached to dividends paid (1. (1,527 177 (&3}
Other adjustments 93 -
Balance at end of the period 11,649 10,747 449 476

tmputadon credits available directly and indirectly to shareholders of the parent company.

through
Parent company 449 476
Subsidiaries 11,200 10.271

11,649 10,747
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NOTE 11
Provision for Employee Entitlements
Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 5000 3000 $000
Balance at beginning of year 2.784 2,534 - -
Additional provision made 1.335 1.830 B -
Amount wifised {1.445) (1.580) - -
Ealance at End of Year 2,874 2784 - -
This is represented by:
Current liability 2,194 2.084 - -
Non-current 6380 700 - -
Balance at End of Year 2.874 2.784 - -

The provision for employee eatitiements relates to employee benefits such as redundancy provisions. acerued annual leave. sick leave and long service
leave. The provision is affected by a number of estimates. including the expected fength of service of employees and the timing of benefils being taken.

The rate used for discounting the provision for future payments is 6,10% (2008; 6.4%),
NOTE 12

Dividends Payable

Group Parent
2009 2008 29 2008
5000 5000 $000 5000
Proposed distributions;
Proposed dividend 10 the Greater Wellington Regional Council 1.659 64 1.659 64
Proposed dividend io minority interest 462 415 - -
Tatal Dividends Declared 2,121 479 1.659 64
NOTE 13
External Debt
Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 5000 5000 $000
Bank loans « current 45,148 . 44.000 0
Bank loans - fong terin 170,531 172.932 - 44,000
Other debt - - - -
Total External Debt 215.679 172.932 44,000 44.000

The parent has a bank loan facility of $44 million with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (drawn to $44 million) which is secured by $50.000.000
uncalled shares in favour of Greater Wellington Regional Council. The interest rate charged on the facility as at 30 June 2008 was 2.62% p.a. (30 June
2008: 8.37% p.a.).

The long tenn bank loan facility is an unsecured three-year facility of $203 million with renewal dates in 2010 and 2011, The facility can be repaid or
drawn down until expiry. The interest rate charged on this facility as at 30 June 2009 vanged from 2.958% to 3.787% p.a. (2008: 8.225% t0 9.158%). No
collateral was required on lending, but CentrePort Lumited has giver the bank a negative pledge and there are therefore restrictions on the quantum of
borrowing made.
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NOTE 14
Financial Instruments
Nature of activities and management policies with respect to financiai instrummenis:

Fair Values
The estireated fair value of the following financial instruments are:

[Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Group's finance function provides services to the business. co-ordinates access to financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risk relating
1o the operations of the Group threugh internal risk reports which analyses expesure by degree and magnitude of risks, These risks include market risk
(including cutrency risk, fair value inferest rate risk and price risk). credit risk. liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group seeks to
mininise the effects of these risks. by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed
by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rale risk, credit risk. the
use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments. including derivative
financial instruments for speculative puposes.

Treasury activities are reporied (o the Board quarterly at CentrePort and ai each meeting of the WRC Holdings Board. In addition, Cenireport has
established a Treasury Comunitier with independent Treasury advisors as a members. WRC Holdings Treasury activities are covered by Greater
Weliington's Treasury Policy.

Fair values

The Group considers that the carrying amouat of financial assets and financial labilities {except borrawings) recorded in the financial statements
approximates their fair values. The fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available use is
made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instrament.

Inter- group Advances
The parent company holds balances with other group entities. These inter-graup advances are non-interest bearing, and are carried at cost not fair value,
H is considered impractical to determine the fair value of these advances due to the difficulty of doing so without an actively traded market.

Signifieant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adepted, includiag the criteria for recognition. and the basis of measurement applied in respect
of each class of financial asset. financial liability and equily instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital 1o ensure that entilies in the Group will be able to continue as a geing concern while maximising (he retum (o
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capitai structure of the Group consists of debt. which includes the borrowings
disclosed in note 13.

The Boards of Directors reviews the capital soucture at ieast annually, This review is forward focused and corsiders the availability, cost and risks
associated with each class of capital to balance capital structure through the payinent of dividends and issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

Externallv imposed capital requirements

CentrePort Limited bas borrowing covenant requirements for gearing and interest cover ratios. Covenants are reporied serni-annually to the Board then
forwarded its banker. Ail externally imposed coveranis have been complied with during the period. WRC Holdings Limited does not have any financial
covenants on its borrowing.
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Note 14 (continued)

The following table details the classes of financial assets and financial liabilities contained in the Balance Sheet for both the Company and the Group:

Group 2009 Loan & Derivatives Financial Total
Receivables  classified as  liabilities at
hekd for amortised
trading cost
S04 5000 3000 s000
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 21} 211
Trade and other receivables 3518 - - 5.518
Other financial 1,960 5.439 - 7.399
Total Financial Assets 7.689 5.439 - 13.128
Liabilities:
Trade and other payables - - 10.260 10,260
Borrowings - 2187 215679 217.866
Other financial 143 - 66,214 56.357
Fotal Financial Liabilities 143 2187 292.153 294,483
Group 2008 Loan & Derivatives Financial Total
Receivables  classified as  liabilities at
held for amortised
trading cost
3000 S600 3000 5000
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 820 B B 820
Trade and other receivables 6409 - - 6.409
Other finarcial 774 2,187 - 2.961
Total Financial Assets 8.003 2,187 - 10,190
Liabilities:
Trade and other payables - - 13.024 13.024
Borrowings - - 172,932 172.932
Other financial 342 . 36,338 36,680
Total Financial Liabilities 342 - 222254 222.636
Parent 200% Loan & Derivatives Financial Total
Receivables  classified as  liabilities at
held for amortised
trading cost
5000 s000 3000 5000
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - i
Trade and other receivables 7 - - 7
Other financial 1.997 1.251 45.778 49.026
Total Financial Assets 2,005 1.25] 43778 49.034
Linbilities;
Trade and other payables 30 - - 30
Borrowings - - 44.000 44.000
Other financial 143 - 1.659 1.802
Total Financial Liabilities 173 - 45.059 45.832
Parent 2008 Loan & Derivatives Financial Total
Receivables classified as  liabilities at
held for amortised
trading cost
3000 000 3000 5000
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - i
Trade and other receivables 10 - - 10
Other financial 1.866 - 44,173 46,039
Total Financial Assets 1.877 - 44,173 46050
Liabilities:
Trade and other payables 16 - - 36
Borrowings - - 44,000 44,000
Other financial . . 64 64
Total Financial Liabilities 36 - 44,064 44.100
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Note 14 {continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is expesed to interest rate risk as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and fleating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. by the use of interest rate swap contracts and forward interest rate contracts.
Hedging activities are evaluated regularly 1o align with interest rate views and defined risk appetile as provided for in the Treasury Policy: ensuring
optimal hedging strategies are applied. by either positioning the balance sheet or protecting interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial Habilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of note 14,

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest zates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the
reporting date and the stipulated change 1aking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout she reporting period. A 1% or
100 basis poins increase or decrease represents management's assessment of the possible change in interest rates

At reporting date, if interesi rates had been {% or £00 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant. the Group's net profit
would increase/decrease by $840.000 (2008 decreasefincrease by $580,000). This is mainly attributable o the Group's exposure 10 interest sates on its
uncovered rate bonowings.

The Group's sensitivity to interesi rates has decreased during the current period due to the increase in interest rate swaps.

Interest Rate Swap Centracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees o exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed
notional principal amounts. Such cenfracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair vajue of issued fixed rate debt held
and the cash flow expesures on the issued variable rate debt heid, The fair vajue of interest rate swaps are based on market values of equivalent
instrumenis as the reporting date and are disclosed beiow. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances.

At balance date the Group had entered into the foliowing swap agreements and interest sate collars {options) that had interest rates ranging from 4.15%
to 7.30% (2008: 6.02% (o 7.765% p.a.) and maturities of’

Interest Rate Swap Agreements - Group Group
Enterest Face Value  Fair Value  Face Value  Fair Vailue

Rate 2009 2009 2008 1008
Financial Assets Yo 5000 S0060 3000 3000
Less than one year - - 5.000 49
Onz to two years - - 20.000 564
Two to five years 4,87 45,000 1.612 §5.000 1319
Greater than § years 5.76 40,000 341 - -
Greater than 5 years 4.15 10.000 358 - -
Greater than 5 years 4.54 10.000 693 - -
Greater than 5 years 5.18 45,000 2227 - Q
Total Financial Assets 150,000 5,431 110,000 1,932

Financial Liabilities

Less than ane yeay 6.28 20,000 (505) - -
Two 1o five years 6.49 20,000 (1.217} - -
Greater than § years 599 25,000 {465) - -
‘Total Financial Liabilities 63,000 {2,187) - -
Tareign Exchange contracts - . - 255
Diesel contracts 8
Total Financial Instruments 215,000 3,252 110,000 2,187
Interest Rate Swap Agreements - Parent Parent
Interest Faee Value Fair Value  Face Value Fair Value

Rate 2009 2009 2008 2008
Tinancial Asscts % F000 5006 5000 5000
Greater than 5 years 4.15 10.000 558 - -
Grealer than 5 years 4.54 19,000 693 - -
Total Financial Assets 20,000 1,251 - -
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Maturity profile of financial instruments - group

The following table details the Group's exposure 1o inferest rate risk al 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008.

Weighted Variable Maturity Profile of Financial Instraments Non
Average interest interest Total
Effective Rate Bearing
2009 interest NZ 5000
Rate % Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 45 years 5% years
one year
000 5000 $600 5000 3000 5000 3000 5000
Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables 10,260 - - - . - 10,260 10,280
Other payables 65.677 680 - - 66.357 66,357
Debt - WRCH 2.62% 2.62% 44.000 - - . - - 44.000
Debt - CentrePt 6.05% 2.08% 1.148 140,531 30,000 - - - 171.679
Tolal 121.085 141.211 30.000 - - 76.617 292.296
Weighted | Variable Fixed Maturity Dates Non
Average interest Enterest Total
Effective Ruate Bearing
2008 {nterest NZ 5000
Rate % Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4.5 years 5+ years
one year
000 S000 3000 $000 5000 5000 3000 5000
Finzneial Liabilities:
Trade payables 13.024 - - - - 13.024 13.024
Other payables 35.980 700 - - 36,680 36,680
Debl - WRCH 8.37% 3.37% 44.000 - - - - - 44000
Debt - CentrePt 7.11% 8.70% 371 30.000 98,932 - - - 129.303
Total 933735 30.700 98.932 - - - 49,704 223.007
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Maturity Profile of Financial Instraments - Parent

The following table details the group's expesure to interest rate risk at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007.

Woeighted Variable Fixed Maturity Dates Non
Average interest interest Toetal
Effecfive Rate Bearing
2009 Interest NZ 5000
Rate %4 Less than 1-2 years 1-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 54 years
one year
3000 3000 5000 5000 3000 000 000 5000
Financial liabilities: -
Trade payables 30 . . R 30 30
Other payables 1,802 - - - - - 1.802
Bomowings - 2.62% 44,000 - - - 44.000
Total 45.832 - - - - 30 45.832
Weighted Variable Fixed Maturity Dates Non
Average interest inferest Total
Effective Rate Bearing
2008 Interest NZ 57000
Rate % Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
one year
5000 5000 5000 3000 $000 3000 5000 5000
Financial
‘Trade payables 36 - - . - 16 kY]
Cther payables 64 . . . - - - 64
Borrowings - 8.37% 44,000 - - - - - 44.000
Total 44,100 - - - - 36 44,100
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NOTE 14 continued
Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk thal the counter party 1o a transaction with the Group witl fail to discharge its obligations, causing the Group to incur a financial
loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk through the normal trade credit cycle and advances to third parties. The Group performs credit evaluations on
all customers reguiring credit and generally does not require collateral. Maximum exposures 1o credit risk as at balance date are the carrying value of
financial assets in the balance sheet/statement of financial performance.

Trade and other receivables include amounts that are unimpaired but considered past due as at balance date. An analysis of the age of such made
receivables is included in the iable foilowing

Aging past duc trade receivables Group Parent

2009 2008 2009 2008

5000 3000 5000 $000
1-30 days 512 733 - -
30-60 days 345 218 - -
60-60 days 104 14 _ .
90-120 days §9 212 - -
Total 1,050 1,177 - -

No collateral is held on the above amounts.

Concentrations of credit risk

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposare to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
International credit-rating agencies,

Currency risk
The Group ensers into forward exchange contracts to hedge the group’s foreign currency risk on major asset purchases.

There were no forward foreign currency (FC) contracis as at year end.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds at short notice 1o meet its financial commitnents a5 they fall due. To
reduce the exposure to liquidity risk the Group has a bank overdrafl facility of $1 million (2608: $1 millien), New Zealand dollar Commercial Bil}
facilities of $203 million (2007; $170 million) and a cash advance facility of $44 miliion (2008: $44 million) other borrowings of SNil (2007; $Nil). Of
these $214.5 million (2008: $172.9 million) had been drawn down by the Group at balance date.

CentrePort Limited has an unsecured facility agreement of $203 miliion with Westpac Banking Corporation with renewal dates in 2010 and 2011.
The Board and management of CentrePort review the cash flow on 2 monthly basis.

WRC Holdings has a $44 million term facility with Commanwealth Bank which expires in Septemnber 2009. WRC Holdings has accepted an offer to
extend this facility for a tenn of 3 years maturing in September of 2012.
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NOTE 14 continued

Liguidity profile of financial instruments - Group

The following tables detail the entity’s liquidity profile based on undiscounted cash outflows at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007, assuming

future interest cost on borrowings at 6.10% of the average debt for each period.

Group 2009 Fixed Maturity Dates
Total
Less than [-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4.5 years 5+ years
one year
000 5001 5002 5003 004 5005 5006
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 10.260 . - - 10,260
Other payables 65.677 680 B - . - 66.357
Other financial liahilities 816 330 350 372 283 307 2458
Borrowings 35199 149511 30.688 - - - 235.798
Total 131,952 150,921 31,038 37 243 307 314,873
Group 2008 Fixed Maturity Dates
Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
oNie year
5000 $001 £002 5003 004 5005 5006
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13.024 B - - - 13.024
Ogher payables 35,980 735 - - . - 36,735
Borrowings 13.835 86.635 102.88% - - - 203.339
Total 62,839 87,390 102,889 - - - 253,118
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NOTE 14 continued

Liquidity profile of financial instruments - Parent

The following tables detail the entity’s liquidity profile based on undiscounted cash outflows at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007, asswming
future interest cost en borrowings at 6.10% of the average debt for each period.

Parent 2009 Fixed Maturity Dates
Total
Less than 1-2 years Z-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
oTiE year
3000 3001 S002 5003 5004 $005 3006
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 30 - - - R - 30
Other payables 1.802 - - - - - 1.802
Borrowings 44.471 - - - - - 44.671
Total 46,503 - - - - - 46,503
Parent 2008 Fixed Maturity Dates
Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
one year
$000 5001 002 3003 5004 5005 5006
Financiat liabilities
Trade payables 36 - . - . - 16
Other payables 64 - . . - . 64
Bormowings 3.520 47,528 - - - - 51,040
Total 3,620 47,520 “ - - - 51,140
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NOTE 15
Disclosure for Iessees

Leases

The Group through CentrePort has operating leases which retate 1o soraddles and forklifi pucks, The swraddle lease is for 2 period of 10
years: the forklifi truck lease terms are between 2 to 5 years. with an option to extend. All operating lease contracts contain market review
clauses in the event that the CentrePort Limited exercises its option 1o renew. CentrePort Limited does not have an option to purchase the

leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.

Non-cancellable operating lease payments
Not longer than | Year

Longer than | year and not longer than 5 years
Longer than 5 years

Disclosure for lessors

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Non- cancellable operating lease receipts:

Not later than 1 year
Later than | year and no later than 3 years
Later than 5 years

2007 comparatives are no available for the above tables.
NOTE 16
Intangible Asscts
Group 2009
Qpening balance
Additions
Disposals
Aumortisation
Closing balance
Group 2008
Opening balance
Additions
Dispasals
Revaluations

Atnortization

Closing balance

The amortisation expense is included in operating expenses in the income statement (sce Note 2)

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
3000 5000 F00 5000
1.619 415 -
4.930 364 - -
5.558 - -
12,107 779 - -
Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 $000 3000 3000
14.021 7.126 -
37.164 3.491 - -
73.854 3.491 - -
125,039 14,108 - -
Cost Accumulated Total
Amortisation
5000 sao0 5000
379 (2.849) 942
153 - 355
{140) 140 -
- (338) (338}
4,006 (3,047) 959
Cost Accumuiated Total
Amortisation
5000 3000 3000
3.687 [2.668) 1.019
275 - 279
(175} 175 -
- {356} {336)
3,791 (2,849} 942
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NOTE 17

Reconciliation of surplus for the year with cash flows from operating acfivities

Profit after tax before minority interest
Less Dividends declared

Add /(Less) Non Cash [tems:

Depreciation

Amaortisation

Impairment of fixed assets

(Gain)/loss on saie of praperty. plant & squipment
(Gain) on sale of medical waste

Fixed assels written off

Disposal costs of Investiment properties

Gain on fair value movement financial instruments
Revaiuation movements

Iimpairment of investmenss

Equity accounted earnings from associale companies
Defetred iax

(Increase)/decrease in vaiue of investments

Bad debt expense

Change in provisien for doubtful debt

Add /(Less) Movements in Working Capital:
Accounts receivable

Accounts payahle

Revenue in advance

Dividends receivable

Inventory

Borrowings

Taxation - refund

Taxation - provision

Current account

Greater Wellington Regional Councii
Current account

Employee entitlements

Add /(Less) Items Classified as Investing and
Financing Activities:

Dividends paid/payable

Shareholder Subvention payable

Increase/(decrease) in current accounts relating to financing activities
Accounis Payable related to Property. Plant & Equipment

Increase in Share Capital
Interest Capitalised

Accounts Receivable related to Property. Plant & Equipment

Net Cash Inflows From Operafing Activities

Group Parent
2009 2008 2009 2008

§000 5008 sSooo 5000

{3.883) 3,208 1.405 111

(1.659} (1.659)

6.904 6.490 - -
338 356
777 - - -
(230 (448) - -

(1.065) 779 (1.251)

10.914 (135) 1.505 (43
@1 35 - -
2.816 91§ - -

19 194 -

126 85 - -
(390) 9.942 3 572

(2.395) (6.910) (6) (335}
15,780 13216 - -

- - (1.605)
(424} (147) - -
1.366 - - -
(1.354) 682 - -
1.011
(1.528) 250 42 (57)
(173}

90 . - -
1.595 64 1.593 64
(136)

1,620 (581) 144 178

(15.541) (17.683) -

975 B - -

14,296 11.303 - 304
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NOTE 18

Related Parties

and related parties included;

Greater Wellington Regional Council

Inferest income on inter company curen! accounts
Rental income received

Proposed dividend

Payment for management fees

Payment for rent and services. CentrePort

Payment for use of navigational facilities. CentrePort

WRC Holdings Subsidiaries
Dividend income from Port Envesonents Ltd and Pringle House Ltd
Interest income on Port Investments Lid advance

CentrePac Ltd
Income received firom rent and services performed.
Payment received for payroll and support services

Transport Systems 2000 Ltd

Income received from rent and services performed
Payment received for payroll and support services
Tayment for services performed

‘Wellington Port Coldstore Limited
Income received from rent and services performed.
Contribution to plant development

Greater Wetlington Regional Council and Subsidiaries
CentrePac Limited

Transport Systems 20008 Limited

Weilinaton Port Coldstore Limited

the entity. is set out below:

Shart-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

Other long-tenn employee benefits

Tofal Key Management Personnel Compensation

All transactions with related parties have been carvied out on nonral commerciat tenns.

Al year-end the following oulstanding balances with related parties were recorded as an asset / (Hability):

The compensation of the Directors and executives. being the key management personnel of

2009
5000

86

(1,546}
{1.659)

262)

{630)

307
13

i.052
35
(28)

164
(12)

During the year CentrePort subsidiary companies charged by way of lease rentals $17.3 million 2008; $17.9 million)

During the vear CentrePort charged by way of a managernent fee $1.2 million 10 a subsidiary company (2008: §1.2 million).

WRC Holdings Ltd is 100% owned by Greater Wetlington Regional Council. During the year transactions between WRC Holdings Lid

2008
5000

(49)

(1.551)

(64)

(249)
93

(703)

302
(13

1.614
(35)

CentrePort made subvention payments 10 Greater Wellington Regional Council and its subsidiaries tosalling $ Nil million (2007: $ Nil.

2009 2008
3000 $000
I 9
7 18

(2)

2009 2008

S00n s006

2190 2.03%
. 14

7.190 2052

Parent
2009
$000

(1.659)
(54}

1.778
2.342

2008
5000

(64)
(56}

173
3.686
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NOTE 19
Contingent Liabilities

The following contingent liabilities existed at 30 June 2009:

Parent Company

The parent company has uncalled capital in Port Investments Ltd of $10.000.100 (2008: $10.000.100).

The parent company has uncalled capital in Greater Wellington Rail of $20,595.930 composed 0f 22,176,000 $1 shares unpaid te 92.9 cents
and has reduced by 4.4c from 97.3 cents in 2003.

Subsidiary Companies

Al balance date CentrePort Limited had contingent liabilities of $750.000 being shares in Wellington Port Coldstore Limited subseribed bwt not paid.
(2008: $750,0001}.

Capital Commitments

The following capiial commitments existed at 30 June 2009:

Parent Company
The parent company has no capital commitments {2007: Nil ).

Subsidiary Companies - CentrePort Ltd
At batance date there were comumitinents in respect of contracts for capital expenditure of $31.7 million {2008: $57.3 million).
The majority of this is in refation to the investment building for Customs $20.1 million.

Subsidiary Companies - Pringle House Ltd .
Estimated contractual commignents al balance date but nof provided were nil (30 June 2008:519.600).

Subsidiary Companies - Greater Wellington Rail Led
Estimated contractual commitments at balance date but not provided were $205.000.826 (2008 $208.825.000).

NOTE 26
Financial Results Compared with Statement of Intent (SOT) Targets:
Actual Target Actual
2009 2009 2008
s000 $000 3000
Net surplus before tax 10.468 8.162 7.233
Net suplus after tax {3.885) 4,068 3.205
Return on total assets 4.9% 4.3% 4.8%
Return on shareholder equity: excluding any increase in the value of investinent property 6.1% 1.66% 3.4%
Retum ou shareholder equity: including any increase in the value of investment property (3.0%) 1.66% 1.3%
Dividends 1.65% 245 64

Net profit before tax
The Group posted a net profit before tax. before any changes in the value of investment preperty and fand, of $10.5 million {budget $8.1million} for the year.

Net profit after tax (before deduction of mminority interest)
The net surplus afier tax measure includes a $11.0 milion (2008 $830.000 decrease} decrease in the net cwrent vaine of the group's investment properties and land.

Return on total assets
This target is calculated as earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) and expressed as a percentage of average tofal assels,

Return on sharcholder equity
This target is calculated as net profit after 1ax (after deduction of minority interest) as a percentage of average shareholder equity (excluding minority interest). The
measure is shown both before and after any increase in the value of investmen properties. Average pareni shareholder equity has also inereased due 1o the revaluation
of assets,

NOTE 21
Segment Information

The Group's operations can be split into preperty. port operation and investiment segments. All operations are caried out within New Zealand.

Port Other
Operations Rail Property Operations  Eliminafions Group

2009 2009 2009 2009 1009 2009

5000 SO00 5000 2000 5000 5000
Total revenue 50.749 2.23% 10.593 3.393 (8.097) 60,877
Net surplus before tax 10.024 - {7.757 1,405 4250 (578)
Total assets 214.861 51.064 235,599 61.224 (106.376) 456,372
Other Segment Information
Carrying value of investments accounted for using the equity method 1,812 - - - - i.812
Share of net profivloss of assaciates accounted for under the equity methad 542 - - - - 342
Acqguisition of segment assets 8.852 - 53.660 - - 62,512
Depreciation and amortisation of segment assets 5513 . 461 - - 5.974
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Port
NOTE 23 Operations
Segment Information - continued 2008

5000
Total revenue 47,565
Met surplus before tax 10,385
Total assets 212506
Other Segment Information
Carrying value of investments accounted for using the equity method 1.397
Share of net profitloss of asseciates accounted for under the equity method 315
Acquisition of segment assets 17,371
Depreciation and amortisation of segment 5.495

Rail
2008
3000

2448
(105)
34117

Property
2008
5000

10.252
936
189.886

41.629
353

Other
Operations
2008
000

3859
111
58.366

Eliminations
2003
5000

(7.574)
(3.891)
(106.144)

Group
1008
5000

56,350
7436
388731

1.597
313
59,000
6.846

CentrePort Limited operates irs the property and port operation segiments. Al} operations are carried out within New Zealand, The principal products and services of
the Porl operations are management and operation of a commercial port pursuant to the Port Companies Act 1998. The principal products and services of the property
segment are inarine, logistical and storage services for conltainers. forestry. vehicles. bulk fuels and other ancillary carges imporied and exported through CentrePort.

Wellington Regional Council [Toldings Limited is a holding company for Pringle House Limited which owns and operates an Investment property at 142 Wakefield St.
Ports Investments Limited holds shares a 76.9% share Centreport Limited, Greater Wellington Rail Limited holds rail roliing stock. Greater Weliington Transpert &

Infrastructure are inactive companies,

NOTE 24
Subsequent Events

On i4th September 2009 the $44.000.000 Facility with CBA Baak was renewed fora 3 year tenn and funds were raised at an interest rate of 3.02% for 90 days via

issuance of cognimercial paper.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Caompliance
‘The Directors and management of the Cempany confirm that all the statutory requiremens of the Local Government Act 2002 in relation to the financial
report have been complied witin

Responsibility
The Directors and management of the Company accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual Financial Statements and statement of service performance and
the judgements used in them.

The Direclors have authority to sign these financial slatements,

The Directors and inanagement of the Company accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internat control designed 10 provide reasonable
assurance as 0 the integrity and reliability of financiat reporting.

In the opinion of the Directors and management of the Compaty. the annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 fairly reflect the financial position
and operations of the Company.

. /
e
. /'A\/IF\"/\ - //\~_/—\~ September 24, 2009

Director
M’?"’_’t .
\% i - /L/—\
Director s Mé/ é“’/{-’ September 24, 2009

4 .

é 7
/ - A
Chief Financial Officer f' " i \—-*"’V”“*‘“”/“} September 24, 2009

i

Page 41






AUDIT NEW ZEALAND

Mana Arotake Aoctearca

Audit Report

To the readers of
WRC Holdings Limited and group’s
Financial Statements and performance information
for the year ended 30 June 2009

The Auditor-General is the auditor of WRC Holdings Limited (the company} and group. The
Auditor-General has appointed me, A P Burns, using the staff and resources of Audit

New Zealand, to carry out the audit of the financial statements and performance information of
the company for the year ended 30 June 2009.

Unqualified Opinion

In our opinion:

* The financial statements of the company and group on pages 8 to 40:
o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
) give o true and fair view of:
. The company and group’s financial position as at 30 June 2009;
and

The results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

. The performance information of the company and group on page é and 7 gives a
true and fair view of the achievements measured against the performance targets
adopted for the year ended 30 June 2009.

° Based on our examination the company kept proper accounting records.

The audit was completed on 24 September 2009 and is the date at which our opinion is
expressed.

The basis of cur opinion is explained below. In addition, we ouiline the responsibilities of the
Board of Directors and the Auditor, and explain our independence.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards.

We planned and performed the audit to obtain all the information and explanations we
considered necessary in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements and
performance information did not have material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect
a reader’s overall understanding of the financial statements and performance information. If we
had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our
opinion.

The audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented in the financial
statements and performance information. We assessed the results of those procedures in forming
our opinion.

Audit procedures generally include:






° Verifying samples of transactions and account balances;

° Performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported datg;

. Reviewing significant estimates and judgements made by the Board of Directors;

. Confirming year-end balances;

° Determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently applied;
and

° Determining whether all required disclosures are adequate.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial
statements and performance information.

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements
and performance information. We obtained all the information and explanations we required 1o
support our opinion above.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Auditor

The Board of Direciors is responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The financial statements must give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at 30 June 2009 and the results of
its operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date. The Board of Directors is also
responsible for preparing performance information that gives a true and fair view of service
performance achievements for the year ended 30 June 2009. The Board of Directors’
responsibilities arise from the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the Local Government Act 2002.

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and
performance information and reporting that opinion to you. This responsibility arises from
section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 69 of the Local Government Act 2002.

Independence

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the
Auditor-General, which incorporate the independence requirements of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand.

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the company or any of its
subsidiaries.

A P Burns

Audit New Zealand

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zedaland






